
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

KENT AND MEDWAY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 
 
 
 

Dear Councillor 
 
Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the KENT AND MEDWAY POLICE AND CRIME 
PANEL will be held in the Darent Room, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on 
Thursday, 29th November, 2012, at 10.00 am when the following business will be 
transacted 
 
 
Members of the public who require further information are asked to contact Anna Taylor on 
01622 694764 
 
 
Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the start of the meeting in the meeting room 
 
 
Membership  
 

Councillor Gerry Clarkson Ashford Borough Council 

Councillor Pat Todd Canterbury City Council 

Councillor Anthony Martin Dartford Borough Council 

Councillor Sue Chandler Dover District Council 

Councillor John Burden Gravesham Borough Council 

Mr Mike Hill Kent County Council 

Councillor Annabelle Blackmore Maidstone Borough Council 

Councillor Mike O'Brien  Medway Council 

Councillor Peter Fleming Sevenoaks District Council 

Councillor David Monk Shepway District Council 

Councillor Andrew Bowles Swale Borough Council 

Councillor Mrs Iris Johnston Thanet District Council 

Councillor Mark Rhodes Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council 

Councillor David Jukes Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Councillor Alex Perkins Canterbury City Council - Co-opted member 

Councillor Gordon Cowan Dover District Council - Co-opted member 

Councillor Ian Chittenden Maidstone Borough Council - Co-opted member 

Councillor Rupert Turpin Medway Council - Co-opted member 

Mr Dan McDonald Independent Member 

Mr Gurvinder Sandher Independent Member 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 

(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 
 

1  Election of Chairman   
 

2  Election of Vice-Chairman   
 

3  Declarations of Interests by Members in Items on the Agenda for 
this Meeting   

 

4  Minutes of the Meeting of the Shadow Panel held on 7 November 
2012 (Pages 1 - 4)  

 

5  Appointment of Independent Co-opted Members (Pages 5 - 6)  
 

6  Introduction to the Commissioner   
 

7  Terms of Reference, Panel Arrangements, Rules of Procedure 
(Pages 7 - 24)  

 

8  Code of Conduct for PCP Members (Pages 25 - 38)  
 

EXEMPT ITEMS 

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public) 

Peter Sass 
Head of Democratic Services  
(01622) 694002 
 
Wednesday, 21 November 2012 
 
 



1 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

SHADOW KENT AND MEDWAY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Shadow Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel 
held in the Darent Room, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Wednesday, 7 
November 2012. 
 
PRESENT: Cllr H Barker (Shepway District Council), Cllr Mrs A Blackmore 
(Maidstone Borough Council), Cllr Mrs S Chandler (Dover District Council), 
Mr P M Hill, OBE (Chairman)(Kent County Council), Mr J A Kite, MBE (Dartford 
Borough Council), Cllr M O'Brien (Vice-Chairman)(Medway Council), Cllr M Rhodes 
(Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council), Cllr P Fleming (Sevenoaks District 
Council), Cllr G Clarkson (Ashford Borough Council) and Cllr P Todd (Canterbury 
City Council) 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mr G Hooper (Chief Executive, Kent Police Authority), 
Ms K Nicholson (Policy Officer, Kent Police Authority) and Ms L Steward (Policy and 
Research Officer, Kent Police Authority) 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mr P Sass (Head of Democratic Services) and Mrs A Taylor 
(Research Officer to Cabinet Scrutiny Committee) 
 
 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
13. Minutes of the Meeting held on 24 July 2012  
(Item 2) 
 
(1) The Chairman and Mr Sass updated Members on the membership of the formal 

panel, one nomination was awaited, from Canterbury, but this was expected 
imminently.  Once the final nomination had been received the top up seats could 
be allocated.  To allocate the top-up seats the leaders of the relevant groups with 
the largest proportion of members on each council would be contacted to 
nominate a member for the panel. 

 
POST MEETING NOTE: the nominations have now been received and the full 
membership of the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel is published on 
the front page of this agenda pack. 

 
(2) The Chairman updated members on the appointment of the independent 

members on the panel.  An advertisement had been published in all the KM 
Group newspapers and Kent on Sunday, 20 applications were received which 
was shortlisted to 8.  Interviews took place in the week commencing 29 October 
and the panel unanimously agreed to recommend Mr Dan McDonald and Mr 
Gurvinder Sandher as the Panel’s independent members.  These appointments 
were approved by the Shadow Panel and would be ratified by the formal Panel 
on 29 November.   

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



 

2 

(3) The Chairman reminded members that the host authority expected to receive 
funding of £53,300 to administer and support the panel plus up to £920 towards 
expenses per panel member which should be claimed back from the host 
authority.   

 
(4) RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2012 were correctly 

recorded and that they be signed by the chairman as a correct record.    
 
14. Draft Information Sharing Agreement  
(Item 3) 
 
(1) The Chairman offered his thanks to the Kent Police Authority Officers for 

providing the reports for the Shadow Panel’s meeting.  
 
(2) The Information Sharing Agreement was a draft document submitted to the 

Shadow Panel for comments and would be revised for the first meeting of the 
formal panel on 29 November.  The Agreement was not meant as an inhibitor to 
the Panel performing its role, rather a document drawn from statutory guidance 
and best practice to create a positive working relationship between the Panel and 
the Commissioner. 

 
(3) Members discussed the role of the panel in pre/post decision scrutiny.  The 

general view of the panel was that pre-decision scrutiny made it difficult for the 
panel to retain its independence when it came to being the check and balance on 
the work of the Commissioner.   

 
(4) It was confirmed that the Panel did not have any powers to require information 

directly from the Police Force; it was assumed that the Commissioner would be 
the voice of the Police Force and that the Panel would seek information through 
the Commissioner;  although this did not prevent individual members speaking to 
the Police Force. 

 
(5) The section setting out the process for dispute resolution would be amended and 

a revised draft would be submitted to the formal Panel on 29 November for 
approval.  

 
RESOLVED that the comments of the Panel be incorporated into a revised draft to be 
submitted to the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel. 
 
 
15. Complaints policy  
(Item 4) 
 
(1) The Chairman thanked the Officer from the Kent Police Authority for providing 

the complaints document for the Panel.  The Government had de-regulated 
much of the complaints handling and local resolution was considered to be a 
key factor.   

 
(2) Members queried the appeals process for complaints and it was confirmed that 

currently there was no system for appeal.   
 

Page 2



 

3 

(3) It was confirmed that a register would be kept of all complaints received by the 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner. 

 
(4) The Panel agreed that the formal Panel should consider setting up a sub-panel 

to consider complaints; political proportionality should be taken into account for 
the purposes of the sub-panel.   

 
RESOLVED: that the report would be re-drafted following comments from the 
Shadow Panel and submitted to the formal Panel for approval.   
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



From: Peter Sass – Head of Democratic Services 
 
To:   Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel – 29 November 2012 
 
Subject:  Appointment of Independent Co-opted Members 
 

 
Summary:  This report invites the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel to 

ratify the appointment of the panel’s two independent co-opted 
members.    

 
Unrestricted 
 

 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The PCP must co-opt two non-political independent persons onto the panel 

(Schedule 6 Part 2 Section 4(3)(a) of the Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act 2011).  A person may not be a co-opted member of the 
police and crime panel for a police area if the person is any of the following: 
(a) a member of the staff of the police and crime commissioner for that 

police area; 
(b) a member of the civilian staff of the police force for that police area; 
(c) a Member of Parliament; 
(d) a member of the National Assembly for Wales; 
(e) a member of the Scottish Parliament; 
(f) a member of the European Parliament. 
 
As lay members the panel’s two independent co-opted members should 
have skills and knowledge to assist the PCP in discharging its functions 
effectively.   

 
 
2. Recruitment of two independent co-opted members 
 
2.1 The Shadow Panel agreed that a small sub-group would be formed to begin 

the appointment process for the independent persons.  The sub-group 
consisted of Mr Mike Hill (the Chairman of the Shadow Panel), Mr Mike 
O’Brien (the Vice-Chairman of the Shadow Panel) and Councillors 
Annabelle Blackmore and Gerry Clarkson.  An advertisement was 
published in all the KM Group newspapers and Kent on Sunday.  20 
applications were received and these were shortlisted by the sub-group to 
8.  Interviews took place in the week commencing 29 October and the 
panel unanimously agreed to recommend Mr Dan McDonald and Mr 
Gurvinder Sandher as the Panel’s independent members.   

 
2.2 The Shadow Panel approved the two appointments.   
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



3. Recommendation 
 
3.1 The Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel is asked to ratify the 

appointments of the two independent members of the Panel.   
 
 
 
 
Background Documents:   
 
Report to Shadow Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel – 10.05.12 
 
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/g4875/Public%20reports%20pack%2
010th-May-
2012%2010.00%20Shadow%20Kent%20and%20Medway%20Police%20and%
20Crime%20Panel.pdf?T=10 
 
Report to Shadow Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel – 24.07.12 
 
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/g4931/Public%20reports%20pack%2
024th-Jul-
2012%2010.00%20Shadow%20Kent%20and%20Medway%20Police%20and%
20Crime%20Panel.pdf?T=10 
 
Report to Shadow Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel – 07.11.12 
 
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/g4987/Public%20reports%20pack%2
007th-Nov-
2012%2010.00%20Shadow%20Kent%20and%20Medway%20Police%20and%
20Crime%20Panel.pdf?T=10 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

From: Peter Sass – Head of Democratic Services 
 
To:   Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel – 29 November 2012 
 
Subject:  Terms of Reference, Panel Arrangements and Rules of Procedure 
 

 
Summary:  This report invites the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel 

to ratify the terms of reference, panel arrangements and rules of 
procedure for the Panel.   

 
Unrestricted 
 

 
 
1.   Background 
 
1.1 The Shadow Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel has discussed, 

contributed to and agreed the terms of reference, panel arrangements 
and rules of procedure.    

 
1.2 All authorities in Kent have obtained agreement to the terms of 

reference, panel arrangements and rules of procedure. 
 
 
2. Recommendation 
 
2.1 The Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel is asked to ratify the 

terms of reference, panel arrangements and procedure rules set out in 
the appendices to this report  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 – Terms of Reference 
Appendix 2 – Panel Arrangements 
Appendix 3 – Procedure Rules 
 
 
Background Documents 
Report to Kent Forum – Police and Crime Panel in Kent – 8 February 2012 
Report to Shadow Police and Crime Panel – 10 May 2012 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix 1 

Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
Role 
 
The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 will replace the Police 
Authority with a directly elected Police and Crime Commissioner, with the aim of 
improving police accountability. The Police and Crime Commissioner will be 
elected in November 2012.  
 
Each police force area will set up a Police and Crime Panel (Police and Crime 
Panel) to scrutinise and maintain a check and balance on the new Police and 
Crime Commissioner, although the Panel will not have direct control over the 
Police and Crime Commissioner’s decisions. The Police and Crime Panel will 
have similar powers to an overview and scrutiny committee established in 
accordance with section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000, in that it will be 
able to require the Police and Crime Commissioner to attend public meetings; 
require information in the possession of the Police and Crime Commissioner; 
and make recommendations on the draft Police and Crime Plan (for which it is a 
statutory consultee) and expenditure proposals. The Police and Crime Panel 
will also have the ability to: 

 
(a) review and veto the proposed precept 
(b) review and veto the decision to appoint a Chief Constable 
(c) review but not veto the appointment of various other senior staff.  

 
Status 
 
The Police and Crime Panel will be established as a formal joint committee of 
KCC, Medway Council and all 12 District Councils in Kent. It will also include 
two independent members. The Police and Crime Panel will be bound by 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, in relation to the 
publication of agendas, minutes and reports.  
 
In terms of the composition of the Police and Crime Panel, the guidance issued 
by the Local Government Association (LGA) on the role and composition of 
Police and Crime Panel states that there is no single, right approach to 
composition. In particular, it states that it would be possible to take a mixed 
approach, with the Police and Crime Panel comprising both executive and non-
executive members.  In addition, the Home Office and LGA guidance states that 
the councillor membership of Police and Crime Panels should reflect the 
geography, population size and political balance of the force area.  This is 
consistent with the legal requirement to meet the balanced appointment 
objective in the Police and Social Responsibility Act 
 
Members of the Police and Crime Panel are expected to subscribe to and 
comply with the Code of Conduct adopted by their own authority. No code of 
conduct will have precedence over another.  The Independent members will be 
required to comply with a Code of Conduct selected by the Panel.  
 

Page 9



 

Terms of Reference: 
 
Italics refer to Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and/or 
recommendation by Shadow Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel 
 
1. To review and make a report or recommendation on the draft Police and 

Crime Plan, or draft variation.  s28 (3)(a) & (3)(b) 
 
2. To hold a public meeting, question the Police and Crime Commissioner and 

make a report or recommendation on the annual report of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner.  s28 (4) 

 
3. To hold a confirmation hearing and review, make a report, and 

recommendation (as necessary) in respect of proposed senior appointments 
made by the Police and Crime Commissioner.  s28 (5) 

 
4. To review and make a report and/or recommendation on the proposed 

appointment of the Chief Constable (the panel can veto the Police and 
Crime Commissioner’s proposals on this with a two thirds majority vote).  
s28 (5) and sch8 

 
5. To review and make a report and/or recommendation on the proposed 

precept (the panel can veto the Police and Crime Commissioner’s proposals 
on this with a two thirds majority vote).  s28(5) and sch5 

 
6. To review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, by the Police 

and Crime Commissioner in connection with the discharge of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner’s functions.  s28(6) 

 
7. To make reports or recommendations to the Police and Crime 

Commissioner with respect to the discharge of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s functions. s28(7) to (9) 

 
8. To support the effective exercise of the functions of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner. s28(2) 
 
9. To fulfil functions in relation to complaints against the Police and Crime 

Commissioner, in accordance with the responsibilities accorded to the Police 
and Crime Panel by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 
and the Elected Local Policing Bodies (Complaints and Misconduct) 
Regulations 2012.  sch7 para3 (regs) 

 
10. To appoint an Acting Police and Crime Commissioner if necessary. s62 
 
11. To suspend the Police and Crime Commissioner if it appears to the Panel 

that the Police and Crime Commissioner has been charged in the United 
Kingdom or Isle of Man with an offence which carries a maximum term of 
imprisonment exceeding two years. s30 

  
 
 
    

Page 10



 

Appendix 2 

Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel 
 
Panel Arrangements 
 
1. Operating Arrangements 
 
1.1 Kent County Council shall act as the host authority for the Police and Crime 

Panel for the purposes of planning and delivery of the Police and Crime 
Panel’s work programme, the provision of accommodation and officer 
support. Agreed by Kent Forum 08.02.12 and sch6 para 24 

 
1.2 The host authority will provide such administrative and other support as will 

be necessary to enable the Panel to undertake its functions.  Home Office 
funding is expected for at least the first year (Panel Arrangements 6.2).  
Thereafter, if no funds are provided by the Home Office, or if those funds are 
insufficient to cover the costs of running the Police and Crime Panel, the 
Host Authority will defray and recover from the other members the costs of 
administrative support.  The budget for the Police and Crime Panel will be 
agreed annually and the Police and Crime Panel will operate within the 
allocated budget.  (to be agreed by Shadow Police and Crime Panel) 

 
1.3 The Police and Crime Panel will comprise 14 local councillors (one 

representative from each council within the force area) and two independent 
members. sch6 para 4 

 
1.4 Four additional Councilllors will be co-opted onto the Police and Crime Panel 

with the agreement of the Secretary of State. One co-opted councillor will be 
from Medway Council to meet the requirements of geographical balance.  
The three remaining co-opted councillor seats will meet the political balance 
objective.  

 
2. Membership 
 
2.1 All county, unitary and district councillors are eligible to be members of the 

Police and Crime Panel. sch6 para 5 
 
2.2 The Police Crime Commissioner and their deputy cannot be a member of 

the Police and Crime Panel. sch6 para 21-23 
 
2.3 Sitting MPs, MEPs, staff of the Police and Crime Commissioner and civilian 

police staff may not be co-opted onto the Police and Crime Panel. sch6 para 
21-23 

 
2.4 All members of the Police and Crime Panel may vote in proceedings of the 

Police and Crime Panel sch6 para 26 
 
2.5 Appointments of elected Members to the Police and Crime Panel shall be 

made by each of the councils in accordance with their own procedures 
provided that the balanced appointment objective is met.  The balanced 
appointment objective requires that the local authority members of the Police 
and Crime Panel should: 

Page 11



 

 
a) represent all parts of the police force area; 
b) represent the political make-up of the councils taken together; and 
c) have the skills, knowledge and experience necessary for the 
Police and Crime Panel to discharge its functions effectively    

sch6 para 31-32 
 
2.6 The Police and Crime Panel shall also include two independent Members 

appointed by the Police and Crime Panel.  The Police and Crime Panel 
might decide to seek independent members from specific organisations to 
address any skills/knowledge/experience gaps, or following a public 
advertisement.   sch6 para 7 

 
2.7  The Police and Crime Panel will co-opt four further members with the 

agreement of the Secretary of State  One co-opted councillor will be from 
Medway Council to meet the requirements of geographical balance.  
Following Leader appointments to 15 seats of the Police and Crime Panel 
(including 2 seats from Medway Council), the appointment of three 
additional councillor co-optees will seek to top up   the membership of the 
PCP to reflect the overall political balance of the membership of KCC, 
Medway and the 12 District Councils in Kent when taken together, insofar as 
this is possible. Only formally constituted political groups will be taken into 
account for the purposes of this calculation. The three top up seats will be 
sought from the relevant Councils once the Kent and Medway political 
associations have agreed the Councils to which these additional seats are to 
be allocated. However, the Leader nominations are required in the first 
instance before the additional 3 co-opted councillor seats can be filled   

  
3. Casual Vacancies  
 
3.1 A vacancy arises when a member resigns from the Police and Crime Panel.  
 
3.2 Each council will fill vacancies in accordance with the arrangements in their 

Constitution.  Vacancies for independent members will be filled in 
accordance with the selection process outlined in section 4.   (Shadow 
Panel) 

 
4. Independent Members sch 6 para 4 
 
4.1 The Police and Crime Panel shall appoint two independent Members for a 

term of four years starting in November 2012. Sch 6 para 4. (Term for 
Shadow Panel) 

 
4.2 Information packs should be prepared and sent to those requesting 

application forms. 
 
4.3 The applications will be considered against eligibility criteria agreed by the 

Police and Crime Panel and an Appointments Sub Committee will be 
established to consider applications and interview candidates.  

 
4.4 Following the interviews, the Appointments Sub Committee will make 

recommendations to the Police and Crime Panel about membership.   

Page 12



 

 
4.5 The Police and Crime Panel may decide to recommend a change to either 

Independent Member at any point and on doing so shall give notice to the 
Head of Democratic Services (KCC).   

 
5. Appointment of Members  sch6 para 4 
 
5.1  The councils shall each appoint an elected Member to be a Member of the 

Panel.  Additional nominations will be invited to positions for co-opted 
members in line with the membership composition agreed by the Police and 
Crime Panel and each of the councils and subject to approval by the 
Secretary of State.  Named substitutes may also be appointed and notified 
to the Head of Democratic Services (HDS) at KCC. 

 
5.2 In the event that a council does not appoint a Member in accordance with 

these requirements, the Secretary of State must appoint a member to the 
Police and Crime Panel from the defaulting council in accordance with the 
provisions in the Act.   sch6 para 4 

 
5.3  Police and Crime Panel member term of office should be one year but 

renewable and independent co-opted members should be 4 years.  (Shadow 
Panel 10.05.12) 

 
5.4 A council may decide in accordance with its procedures to remove their 

appointed member from the Police and Crime Panel at any point and on 
doing so shall give notice to the Head of Democratic Services (KCC).  
(Shadow Panel) 

 
5.5 An appointed member may resign from the Police and Crime Panel by giving 

written notice the Head of Democratic Services (KCC) and to their council.  
(Shadow Panel) 

 
5.6 In the event that any appointed member resigns from the Police and Crime 

Panel, or is removed by a council, the council shall immediately take steps 
to nominate and appoint an alternative member to the Police and Crime 
Panel.  Each Council should give notice that their member has been 
changed. (Shadow Panel) 

 
5.7 Members appointed to the Police and Crime Panel may be re-appointed for 

a further term  provided that the balanced appointment objective is met by 
that re-appointment.   (Shadow Panel) 

 
6. Support for the Panel 
 
6.1 Any dedicated staff employed to support the Police and Crime Panel will be 

employed by the Host Authority, and their terms and conditions will be that 
of the Host Authority.  (Shadow Panel) 

  
6.2 The Home Office is expected to provide £53,330 plus up to £920 towards 

expenses per panel member, for at least the first year and thereafter, if no 
funds are provided by the Home Office, or if those funds are insufficient to 
cover the costs of running the Police and Crime Panel, all councils will be 

Page 13



 

invited to contribute equally towards the actual costs incurred by the Host 
Authority.  The budget for the panel will be agreed annually and the Police 
and Crime Panel will operate within the allocated budget.   Sch 6 para11(2b) 

 
6.3 In the event of the Police and Crime Panel being wound up the Host 

Authority will be invited to defray and recover from the other members any 
associated costs exceeding the funding provided by the Home Office.  
(Shadow Panel) 

 
7. Allowances sch6 para 28 (must make provision about payment of 

allowances – for local determination) 
 
7.1 Each council has the discretion to pay allowances to its representatives on 

the Police and Crime Panel.  Any allowances payable to elected Members 
shall be determined and borne by the appointing councils.   

 
7.2 The Host Authority, on behalf of the Police and Crime Panel, may pay an 

allowance to co-optees if this is agreed as part of the annual budget 
approved by the Police and Crime Panel.   

 
8. Promotion of, and support for, the panel sch6 para 29 
 
8.1 The Panel shall be promoted and supported by the Host Authority through: 
 

(a) the issuing of regular press releases about the Police and Crime Panel 
and its work; 

(b) the inclusion of dedicated web pages on the work of the Police and 
Crime Panel, with the publication of meeting agendas and minutes. All 
reports and recommendations made, with responses from the Police and 
Crime Commissioner will be published. Information on member 
attendance will be included. 
 

8.2 Support and guidance shall be provided to Executive and non-Executive 
Members and officers of the councils in relation to the functions of the 
Police and Crime Panel by the provision of initial briefing sessions before 
the election of the Police and Crime Commissioner, and the provision of 
annual briefing sessions thereafter. 

 
8.3 The Shadow Police and Crime Panel developed and agreed a 

communications protocol which the Police and Crime Panel may wish to 
adopt. 

 
9. Validity of proceedings sch6 para 30 
 
9.1 The validity of the proceedings of the Police and Crime Panel is not affected 

by a vacancy in the membership or a defect in the appointment of a 
member. 

 
10 Amendments to Terms of Reference and Procedure Rules 
 
10.1 Any proposed amendments to the Terms of Reference or the Procedure 

Rules of the Police and Crime Panel should be submitted to the Police and 

Page 14



 

Crime Panel and each authority for approval.  The Police and Crime Panel 
will review and re-confirm the Terms of Reference and Procedure Rules 
annually.  (Shadow Panel) 

  
Appendix 3 

 
Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel 
 
Procedure Rules (sch 6 para 25 (1)) 
 
1. Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Police and Crime Panel 
 
1.1 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Police and Crime Panel will be 

elected from its membership at the first meeting and thereafter annually 
immediately following the Annual Council meetings of each of the fourteen 
local authorities. sch6 para 25 (2) (Shadow Panel decision to elect annually) 

 
1.2 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman remain in office until the election of their 

successors, they resign or the Police and Crime Panel votes their removal 
(in cases of misconduct or that the Chairman or Vice-Chairman do not allow 
the Police and Crime Panel to effectively deliver its functions as set out in 
the Terms of Reference). In the latter two cases, an election for their 
successor should be held as soon as possible.  (Shadow Panel) 

 
1.3 In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman will preside, in the 

absence of the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman, the meeting will elect a 
chairman for that meeting only.  (Shadow Panel) 

 
2. Meetings (Shadow Panel) 
 
2.1 The Police and Crime Panel will meet in public at least four times per year to 

carry out its functions.   
 
2.2 Extraordinary meetings may also be called from time to time as the Police 

and Crime Panel considers is necessary. 
 
2.3 An extraordinary meeting may be called by the Chairman or by four 

members of the Police and Crime Panel. 
 
2.4  In exceptional circumstances, the Chairman may cancel or rearrange a 

meeting of the Police and Crime Panel.   
 
3. Quorum 
 
3.1 The quorum for a meeting of the Police and Crime Panel is one third of its 

total membership.  (Shadow Panel) 
 
4. Voting 
 
4.1 All members of the Police and Crime Panel may vote in proceedings of the 

Police and Crime Panel subject to Code of Conduct and rules on 
declarations of interest sch6 para 26 

Page 15



 

 
4.2 One-third of the voting members present may require that the way all 

members cast their vote for or against or to abstain shall be recorded in the 
Minutes; such a request must be made before the vote is taken.  (Shadow 
Panel) 

 
5. Work Programme  (Shadow Panel) 
 
5.1 The Police and Crime Panel will be responsible for setting its own work 

programme, taking into account the priorities defined by the Police and 
Crime Commissioner.  In setting the work programme, the Police and Crime 
Panel will also take into account the wishes of its members. 

 
5.2 The work programme must include the functions described in the terms of 

reference for the Police and Crime Panel. 
 
6. Agenda Items  (Shadow Panel) 
 
6.1 Any member of the Police and Crime Panel shall be entitled to give 9 clear 

working days notice to the Head of Democratic Services (KCC) that they 
wish an item relevant to the functions of the Police and Crime Panel to be 
included on the agenda for the next available meeting.  This shall then be 
discussed with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman.   

 
6.2 The Police and Crime Panel agenda will be issued to members at least 5 

clear working days before the meeting.  It will also be published on each 
council’s website and by any other means the Police and Crime Panel 
considers appropriate.  

 
7. Sub-Committees and Task Groups sch6 para 25 
 
7.1 The Police and Crime Panel may establish sub-committees or task groups to 

undertake specific task based work. 
 
7.2 The sub-committees and task groups may not undertake the Special 

Functions of the Police and Crime Panel referred to at paragraph 11.2 
below.   sch6 para 27 (1) 

 
7.3 A sub-committee of the Police and Crime Panel may not co-opt members. 

sch6 para 25(4) 
 
7.4 The work undertaken by a sub-committee or task group will be scoped and 

defined beforehand, together with the timeframe within which the work is to 
be completed and the reporting time for the outcome of the work.  (Shadow 
Panel) 

 
8. Reports 
 
8.1 Where the Police and Crime Panel makes a report to the Police and Crime 

Commissioner, it may publish the report or recommendations by sending 
copies to each of the councils, and by any other means the Police and 
Crime Panel considers appropriate. s28 (7) 

Page 16



 

 
8.2 The Police and Crime Panel must, by notice in writing, require the Police 

and Crime Commissioner within one month of the date on which they 
receive the report or recommendations to:  

 
a) consider the report or recommendations; 
b) respond to the Police and Crime Panel in writing indicating what (if 

any) action the Police and Crime Commissioner proposes to take; 
c) where the Police and Crime Panel has published the report or 

recommendations, publish the response from the Police and 
Crime Commissioner in the same manner 

d) where the Police and Crime Panel has provided a copy of the 
report or recommendations to a Police and Crime Panel member, 
provide a copy of the responses to the Police and Crime Panel 
member. 

s29 although decision of Shadow panel 
 
8.3 The publication of reports or recommendations is subject to the exclusion of 

any exempt or confidential information as defined in the rules on access to 
information in the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).  

 
8.4 If the Police and Crime Panel cannot unanimously agree on one single final 

report to the Police and Crime Commissioner, then separate reports may be 
prepared and submitted for consideration along with the majority report.  
(Shadow Panel) 

 
9. Police and Crime Commissioner and Officers giving account s29 
 
9.1 The Police and Crime Panel may scrutinise and review decisions made or 

actions taken in the discharge of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s 
duties and make reports or recommendations to the Police and Crime 
Commissioner with respect to the discharge of those duties. 

 
9.2 As well as reviewing documentation, in fulfilling its scrutiny role the Police 

and Crime Panel may require the Police and Crime Commissioner, and 
members of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s staff, to attend before it 
(at reasonable notice) to answer questions which appear to the Police and 
Crime Panel to be necessary in order to carry out its functions. 

 
9.3 Where the Police and Crime Commissioner, or a member of the Police and 

Crime Commissioner’s staff, is required to attend the Police and Crime 
Panel in accordance with this provision, the Police and Crime Commissioner 
will be given, where practical, 15 working days notice of the requirement to 
attend.  The notice will state the nature of the item on which they are 
required to attend to give account and whether any papers are required for 
production for the Police and Crime Panel.  

 
9.4 Where, in exceptional circumstances, the Police and Crime Commissioner is 

unable to attend on the required date, then an alternative date for 
attendance shall be arranged following consultation with the Chairman.   

 

Page 17



 

9.5 If the Police and Crime Panel requires the Police and Crime Commissioner 
to attend before it, the Police and Crime Panel may also (at reasonable 
notice) request the Chief Constable to attend the Police and Crime Panel in 
order for it to carry out its functions.  

 
10. Attendance by others s29 
 
10.1 The Police and Crime Panel may invite but not require persons other 

than those referred to above to address it, discuss issues of local concern 
and/or answer questions.  This may include, for example, residents, 
stakeholders, councillors who are not members of the Police and Crime 
Panel and officers from other parts of the public sector. 

 
11. Special functions sch6 para 27 
 
11.1 The special functions of a Police and Crime Panel may not be 

discharged by a committee or sub-committee of the Police and Crime 
Panel. 

 
11.2 The Special Functions of the Police and Crime Panel are those functions 

conferred by: 
 

a) Section 28(3) (scrutiny of police and crime plan); 
b) Section 28(4) (scrutiny of annual report); 
c) Paragraphs 10 and 11 of Schedule 1 (scrutiny of senior 

appointments); 
d) Schedule 5 (issuing precepts); 
e) Part 1 of Schedule 8 (scrutiny of appointment of Chief 

Constables). 
 
11.3 Reports and recommendations made in relation to the functions outlined 

in the terms of reference will be carried out in accordance with the 
procedure outlined at paragraph 8 – Panel Reports. 

 
12. Police and Crime Plan s28 (3) 
 
12.1 The Police and Crime Panel is a statutory consultee on the development 
of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan and will receive 
a copy of the draft Plan, or a draft of any variation to it, from the Police and 
Crime Commissioner. 
 
12.2 The Police and Crime Panel must: 
 

a) hold a public meeting to review the draft Police and Crime Plan (or 
a variation to it), and 

b) report or make recommendations on the draft Plan which the 
Police and Crime Commissioner must take into account. 

 
13.  Annual Report s28 (4) 
 
13.1 The Police and Crime Commissioner must produce an Annual Report 

about the exercise of their functions in the financial year and progress in 

Page 18



 

meeting police and crime objectives in the year.  The report must be sent to 
the Police and Crime Panel for consideration. 

 
13.2 The Police and Crime Panel must comment upon the Annual Report of 

the Police and Crime Commissioner, and for that purpose must: 
 

a) arrange for a public meeting of the Police and Crime Panel to be 
held as soon as practicable after the Police and Crime Panel 
receives the Annual Report; 

b) require the Police and Crime Commissioner to attend the meeting 
to present the Annual Report and answer questions about the 
Annual Report as the Members of the Police and Crime Panel 
think appropriate; 

c) make a report or recommendations on the Annual Report to the 
Police and Crime Commissioner. 

 
14. Appointment of the Chief Constable s28 (5) and sch8 
 
14.1 The Police and Crime Panel must review the proposed appointment by 

the Police and Crime Commissioner of the Chief Constable. sch8 (4)(2) 
 
14.2 The Police and Crime Panel will receive notification of the proposed 

appointment from the Police and Crime Commissioner, which will include:  
sch8 (3)(1-2) 

 
(a) the name of the candidate;  
(b) the criteria used to assess the suitability of the candidate for the 

appointment;  
(c) why the candidate satisfies those criteria; and  
(d) the terms and conditions on which the candidate is to be 

appointed. 
 
14.3 Within three weeks of the receipt of notification the Police and Crime 

Panel must consider and review the proposed appointment, and report to 
the Police and Crime Commissioner with a recommendation as to whether 
the candidate should be appointed.  The three week period shall not 
include the ‘post election period’, being any period between the date of poll 
at the ordinary election of the Police and Crime Commissioner, and the 
date of declaration of acceptance of office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner. sch8 (4) 

 
14.4 Before reporting and recommending on the proposed appointment, the 

Police and Crime Panel must convene a public meeting (‘confirmation 
hearing’) of the Police and Crime Panel where the candidate must attend 
for the purposes of answering questions relating to the appointment.  sch8, 
(6) 

 
14.5 The Police and Crime Panel must publish the report by sending copies to 

each of the councils, and by any other means the Police and Crime Panel 
considers appropriate. sch8, (4)(7) 

 

Page 19



 

14.6 The Police and Crime Commissioner may accept or reject the Police and 
Crime Panel’s recommendation and must notify the Police and Crime Panel 
accordingly.   sch8 (7)(10) 

 
14.7 In relation to the appointment of a candidate for the position of Chief 

Constable, the Police and Crime Panel also has the power to veto the 
appointment by the required majority of at least two thirds of the persons 
who are members of the Police and Crime Panel at the time when the 
decision is made.  sch8 (5) 

 
14.8 A confirmation hearing as in paragraph 14.4 must be held before an 

appointment is vetoed. sch8 (6) 
 
14.9 If the Police and Crime Panel vetoes the appointment under paragraph 

14.7, the report referred to at paragraph 14.3 above must include a 
statement to that effect.  sch8 (5)(2) 

 
14.10 If the Police and Crime Panel vetoes an appointment, the Police and 

Crime Commissioner must not appoint that candidate as Chief Constable. 
sch8 (8)(2) 

 
15. Senior Appointments sch1 para9-11 
 
15.1 The Police and Crime Panel must review the Police and Crime 

Commissioner’s proposed appointments of Chief Executive, Chief Finance 
Officer and Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner.  

 
15.2 The Police and Crime Panel shall receive notification of the proposed 

appointments from the Police and Crime Commissioner including: 
 

(a) the name of the candidate;  
(b) the criteria used to assess the suitability of the candidate for the 

appointment;  
(c) why the candidate satisfies those criteria; and  
(d) the terms and conditions on which the candidate is to be 

appointed. 
 
15.3 Within three weeks of the receipt of notification, the Police and Crime 

Panel must consider and review the proposed appointment and report to 
the Police and Crime Commissioner with a recommendation as to whether 
the candidate should be appointed.  The three week period shall not 
include the ‘post election period’.   

 
15.4 Before reporting and recommending on the proposed appointment, the 

Police and Crime Panel must convene a public confirmation hearing where 
the candidate must attend for the purposes of answering questions relating 
to the appointment.   

 
15.5 The Police and Crime Panel must publish the report by sending copies to 

each of the councils, and by any other means the Police and Crime Panel 
considers appropriate. 

 

Page 20



 

15.6 The Police and Crime Commissioner may accept or reject the Police and 
Crime Panel’s recommendation and must notify the Police and Crime Panel 
accordingly.    

 
16. Proposed Precept sch 5 
 
16.1 The Police and Crime Commissioner must notify the Police and Crime 

Panel of the precept which the Police and Crime Commissioner is 
proposing to issue for the financial year.  The Police and Crime Panel must 
review the proposed precept and make a report which may include 
recommendations. 

 
16.2 Having considered the precept, the Police and Crime Panel must: 
 

(a) support the precept without qualification or comment; or 
(b) support the precept and make recommendations; or  
(c) veto the proposed precept (by the required majority of at least two 

thirds of the persons who are members of the Police and Crime 
Panel at the time when the decision is made). 

 
16.3 If the Police and Crime Panel vetoes the proposed precept, the report to 

the Police and Crime Commissioner must include a statement that gives 
the Police and Crime Panel’s reasons and requires a response from the 
Police and Crime Commissioner to the report and any such 
recommendations.   

 
17.  Appointment of an Acting Police and Crime Commissioner s62 
 
17.1 The Police and Crime Panel must appoint a person to act as Police and 

Crime Commissioner if: 
 

(a) no person holds the office of Police and Crime Commissioner 
(b) the Police and Crime Commissioner is incapacitated 
(c) the Police and Crime Commissioner is suspended s62 (1) 

 
17.2 The Police and Crime Panel may appoint a person as acting Police and 

Crime Commissioner only if the person is a member of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner’s staff at the time of appointment. s62 (2) 

 
17.3 In appointing a person as acting Police and Crime Commissioner in a 

case where the Police and Crime Commissioner is incapacitated, the Police 
and Crime Panel must have regard to any representations made by the 
Police and Crime Commissioner in relation to the appointment.  s62 (3) 

 
17.4 The appointment of an acting Police and Crime Commissioner ceases to 

have effect upon the occurrence of the earliest of these events:   s62 (6) 
 

(a) the election of a person as a Police and Crime Commissioner; 
(b) the termination by the Police and Crime Panel, or by the acting 

Police and Crime Commissioner, of the appointment of the acting 
Police and Crime Commissioner; 

Page 21



 

(c) in a case where the acting Police and Crime Commissioner is 
appointed because the Police and Crime Commissioner is 
incapacitated, the Police and Crime Commissioner ceasing to be 
incapacitated, or 

(d) in a case where the acting Police and Crime Commissioner is 
appointed because the Police and Crime Commissioner is 
suspended, the Police and Crime Commissioner ceasing to be 
suspended 

 
17.5 Where the acting Police and Crime Commissioner is appointed because 

the Police and Crime Commissioner is incapacitated or suspended, the 
acting Police and Crime Commissioner’s appointment does not terminate 
because a vacancy occurs in the office of Police and Crime Commissioner.  
s62 (7) 

 
18. Complaints and suspension of the Police and Crime Commissioner 

sch 7  
18.1 Serious complaints which involve allegations which may amount to a 

criminal offence by the Police and Crime Commissioner or senior office 
holders are dealt with by  the Independent Police Complaints 
Commission (the ‘IPCC’).   

 
18.2 Non-criminal complaints in relation to the Police and Crime 

Commissioner or other office holder can be considered by the Police and 
Crime Panel through a hearing.  The Police and Crime Panel can examine 
this through a sub-committee following Procedure Rule 7. 

 
18.3 The Police and Crime Panel may suspend the Police and Crime 

Commissioner if it appears to the Police and Crime Panel that 
 

(a) the Police and Crime Commissioner has been charged in the 
United Kingdom, the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man with an 
offence, and 

(b) the offence is one which carries a maximum term of imprisonment 
exceeding two years. 

 
18.4 The suspension of the Police and Crime Commissioner ceases to have 

effect upon the occurrence of the earlier of these events: 
 

(a) the charge being dropped 
(b) the Police and Crime Commissioner being acquitted of the offence 
(c) the Police and Crime Commissioner being convicted of the 

offence but not being disqualified under Section 66 of the PR&SR 
Act by virtue of the conviction, or 

(d) the termination of the suspension by the Police and Crime Panel 
 

18.5 In this section reference to an offence which carries a maximum term of 
imprisonment exceeding two years are reference to: 

 
(a) an offence which carries such a maximum term in the case of a 

person who has attained the age of 18 years, or 

Page 22



 

(b) an offence for which, in the case of such a person, the sentence is 
fixed by law as life imprisonment 

 
18.6  Bankruptcy in itself is not a disqualification.  If the Police and Crime 

Commissioner has been bankrupt he/she is not disqualified from 
standing for election or remaining a Police and Crime Commissioner on 
that basis.  Only those who are subject to a bankruptcy restrictions order 
or interim order, a debt relief order or interim order, or a debt relief 
restrictions undertaking are disqualified from standing for election or 
remaining as a Police and Crime Commissioner.   

 
19. Suspension and Removal of the Chief Constable  sch 8 (11) 
 
19.1 If a Police and Crime Commissioner suspends a Chief Constable from 

duty the Police and Crime Commissioner must notify the relevant Police 
and Crime Panel of the suspension 

 
19.2 A Police and Crime Commissioner must not call upon a Chief Constable 

to retire until the end of the scrutiny process which will occur: 
 

(a) at the end of six weeks from the Police and Crime Panel having 
received notification if the Police and Crime Panel has not by then 
given the Police and Crime Commissioner a recommendation as 
to whether or not they should call for the retirement or resignation; 
or 

(b) when the Police and Crime Commissioner notifies the Police and 
Crime Panel of a decision about whether they accept the Police 
and Crime Panel’s recommendations in relation to resignation or 
retirement. 

 
19.3 The Police and Crime Commissioner must also notify the Police and 

Crime Panel in writing of their proposal to call upon the Chief Constable to 
retire or resign together with a copy of the reasons given to the Chief 
Constable and any representation from the Chief Constable in relation to 
that proposal.   

 
19.4 If the Police and Crime Commissioner is still proposing to call upon the 

Chief Constable to resign, they must notify the Police and Crime Panel 
accordingly (the ‘further notification’). 

 
19.5 Within six weeks from the date of receiving the further notification, the 

Police and Crime Panel must make a recommendation in writing to the 
Police and Crime Commissioner as to whether or not they should call for 
the retirement or resignation. Before making any recommendation, the 
Police and Crime Panel may consult the chief inspector of constabulary, 
and must hold a scrutiny meeting. 

 
19.6 The scrutiny hearing which must be held by the Police and Crime Panel 

is a Police and Crime Panel meeting in private to which the Police and 
Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable are entitled to attend to make 
representations in relation to the proposal to call upon the Chief Constable 

Page 23



 

to retire or resign.  Appearance at the scrutiny hearing can be by attending 
in person, or participating by telephone or video link. 

 
19.7 The Police and Crime Panel must publish the recommendation it makes 

by sending copies to each of the councils, and by any other means the 
Police and Crime Panel considers appropriate. 

 
19.8 The Police and Crime Commissioner must consider the Police and Crime 

Panel’s recommendation and may accept or reject it, notifying the Police 
and Crime Panel accordingly.   

 
19.9 In calculating the six week period, the post election period is ignored.  

The post election period begins with the day of the poll at an ordinary 
election of a Police and Crime Commissioner under section 50 of the PR & 
SR Act 2011 and ends with the day on which the person elected as Police 
and Crime Commissioner delivers a declaration of acceptance of office 
under section 70 of the PR & SR Act 2011.   

 
20 Any proposed amendments to the Terms of Reference or the Procedure 

Rules of the Police and Crime Panel should be submitted to the Police and 
Crime Panel for its approval.  If an amendment is proposed the Head of 
Democratic Services would bring a report to the next meeting of the Police 
and Crime Panel for consideration.  The Police and Crime Panel will 
review and re-confirm the Terms of Reference and Procedure Rules 
annually.  

 

Page 24



From: Peter Sass – Head of Democratic Services 
 
To:   Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel – 29 November 2012 
 
Subject:  Code of Conduct for the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel 

Members 
 

 
Summary:  This report invites the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel to 

agree a Code of Conduct for Members of the Panel     
 
Unrestricted 
 

 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 All authorities in Kent and Medway have adopted a new code of conduct.  It 

is suggested that Police and Crime Panel Members be bound by the Code 
adopted by their own authority and that the Independent Members be 
asked to sign up to the ‘Code of Conduct for Board Members of Public 
Bodies’ 

 
1.2 The ‘Code of Conduct for Board Members of Public Bodies’ is attached at 

Appendix 1. 
 
 
2. Recommendation 

 

2.1 The Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel is asked to agree that its 
members be bound by the Code of Conduct adopted by their own authority 
and that the two co-opted Independent Members be asked to sign up to the 
‘Code of Conduct for Board Members of Public Bodies’.   

 
 
 

 

Appendixes: 

 

Appendix 1:  Code of Conduct for Board Members of Public Bodies   
 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

CABINET OFFICE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR BOARD MEMBERS OF PUBLIC 

BODIES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JUNE 2011 

Page 27



 

 1 

 

Page 28



 

 2 

 

FOREWORD 

 

The Government expects all holders of public office to work to the highest 

personal and professional standards.  In support of this, all non-executive 

board members of UK public bodies1 must abide by the principles set out in 

this Code of Conduct.  The Code sets out, clearly and openly, the standards 

expected from those who serve on the boards of UK public bodies and should 

form part of in .  Any 

breach of the Code should be viewed as a breach of those terms and 

conditions of appointment. 

 

This Code replaces Guidance on Codes of Practice for Board Members of 

Public Bodies issued by the Cabinet Office in 2004. 

 

Any questions on the Code should be directed to: 

 

Propriety and Ethics Team 

Cabinet Office 

70 Whitehall 

LONDON 

SW1A 2AS 

 

Tel: 020 7276 0269/0387 

 

Copies of the Code can be downloaded from: 

 

www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/content/public-bodies-and-appointments 

 

                                                 
1
  The principles set out in this Code should apply to all non-executive members on the 

boards of Government Departments, non-Ministerial Departments, Executive Agencies, 

Executive and Advisory non-department public bodies (NDPBs) and national public 

corporations. 

Page 29



 

 3 

 

Page 30



 

 4 

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR BOARD MEMBERS OF 

PUBLIC BODIES 

 

CONTENTS 

 

1. Introduction          5 

 

2. Key Principles of Public Life       5 

 

3. General Conduct         6 

 

  Use of Public Funds        6 

 

  Allowances         6 

 

  Gifts and Hospitality        7 

 

  Use of Official Resources       7 

 

  Use of Official Information       7 

 

  Political Activity        7 

 

  Employment and Appointments      8 

 

4. M Interests        8 

 

5. Responsibilities as a Board Member      9 

 

6. Responsibilities towards Employees      9 

 

 

Page 31



 

 5 

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR BOARD MEMBERS OF 

PUBLIC BODIES 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1 As a public office-holder, your behaviour and actions must be governed 

by the principles set out in this Code of Conduct.  It is your 

responsibility to ensure that you are familiar with, and comply with, all 

the relevant provisions of the Code. 

 

 

2. KEY PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE 

 

2.1 The key principles upon which this Code of Conduct is based are the 

Seven Principle of Public Life2.  These are: 

 

Selflessness 

 

 You should take decisions solely in terms of the public interest.  You 

should not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits for 

yourself, your family or your friends. 

 

Integrity 

 

 You should not place yourself under any financial or other obligation to 

outside individuals or organisations that might, or might be perceived 

to, influence you in the performance of your official duties. 

 

Objectivity 

 

 In carrying out public business, including awarding contracts and 

recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, you should make 

choices on merit. 

 

Accountability 

 

 You are accountable for your decisions and actions to the public and 

must submit yourself to whatever scrutiny is appropriate for your office. 

                                                 
2
 Standards in Public Life: First Report of the Committee on Standards in Public Life.  Volume 

1: Report. CM 2850-I. 

Page 32



 

 6 

 

Openness 

 

 You should be as open as possible about the decisions and actions 

that you take.  You should give reasons for your decisions and restrict 

information only when the wider public interest clearly demands. 

 

Honesty 

 

 You have a duty to declare any private interests relating to your public 

duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that 

protects the public interest. 

 

Leadership 

 

 You should promote and support these principles by leadership and 

example. 

 

2.2 These principles should inform your actions and decisions as a board 

member. 

 

 

3. GENERAL CONDUCT 

 

Use of Public Funds 

 

3.1 You have a duty to ensure the safeguarding of public funds3 and the 

proper custody of assets which have been publicly funded. 

 

3.2 You must carry out your fiduciary obligations responsibly  that is, take 

appropriate measures to ensure that the body uses resources 

efficiently, economically and effectively, avoiding waste and 

extravagance.  It will always be an improper use of public funds for 

public bodies to employ consultants or other companies to lobby 

Parliament, Government or political parties. 

 

Allowances 

 

3.3 You must comply with the rules set by the board and the public body 

regarding remuneration, allowances and expenses.  It is your 

responsibility to ensure compliance with all relevant HM Revenue and 

 

                                                 
3
 This should be taken to include all forms of receipts from fees, charges and other sources. 

Page 33



 

 7 

 Gifts and Hospitality 

 

3.4 You must not accept any gifts or hospitality which might, or might 

reasonably appear to, compromise your personal judgement or 

integrity or place you under an improper obligation. 

 

3.5 You must never canvass or seek gifts or hospitality. 

 

3.6 You must comply with the rules set by the body on the acceptance of 

gifts and hospitality.  You should inform the Chief Executive (or 

equivalent) of any offer of gifts or hospitality and ensure that, where a 

gift or hospitality is accepted, this is recorded in a public register in line 

with the rules set by the body. 

 

3.7 You are responsible for your decisions on the acceptance of gifts or 

hospitality and for ensuring that any gifts or hospitality accepted can 

stand up to public scrutiny and do not bring the public body into 

disrepute. 

 

Use of Official Resources 

 

3.8 You must not misuse official resources4 for personal gain or for political 

on their usage. 

 

Use of Official Information 

 

3.9 You must not misuse information gained in the course of your public 

service for personal gain or for political purpose.5 

 

3.10 You must not disclose any information which is confidential in nature or 

which is provided in confidence without authority.  This duty continues 

to apply after you have left the board. 

 

Political Activity6 

 

3.11 In your public role, you should be, and be seen to be, politically 

impartial.   You should not occupy a paid party political post or hold a 

particularly sensitive or high-profile role in a political party.  You should 

                                                 
4
  This includes facilities, equipment, stationery, telephony and other services. 

5
 Board members who misuse information gained by virtue of their position may be liable for 

breach of confidence under common law or may commit a criminal offence under insider 
dealing legislation 
6
 If you are an MP, Member of the House of Lords, Member of a Devolved Administration or 

Local Councillor, you are exempt from these requirements - although you should still exercise 
proper discretion on matters directly related to the work of the body and recognise that certain 
political activities may be incompatible with your role as a board member. 

Page 34



 

 8 

abstain from all controversial political activity and comply with Cabinet 

Office rules on attendance at Party Conferences7. 

 

3.12 On matters directly related to the work of the body, you should not 

make political statements or engage in any other political activity. 

 

3.13 In your official capacity, you should be even-handed in all dealings with 

political parties. 

 

3.14 Subject to the above, you may engage in political activity but should, at 

all times, remain conscious of your responsibilities as a board member 

and exercise proper discretion.  You should inform the Chair and/or the 

parent Department before undertaking any significant political activity. 

 

Employment and Appointments 

 

3.15 If you wish to take up new employment or appointments during your 

term of office, you must inform the Chair and/or the relevant parent 

Department. 

 

3.16 On leaving office, you must comply with the rules of the body on the 

acceptance of future employment or appointments. 

 

 

4. INTERESTS 

 

4.1 You must ensure that no conflict arises, or could reasonably be 

perceived to arise, between your public duties and your private 

interests  financial or otherwise. 

 

4.2 You must comply with the rules of the body on handling conflicts of 

interests.  As a minimum, these will require you to declare publicly any 

private interests which may, or may be perceived to, conflict with your 

public duties8.  The rules will also require you to remove yourself from 

the discussion or determination of matters in which you have a financial 

interest.  In matters in which you have a non-financial interest, you 

should not participate in the discussion or determination of a matter 

where the interest might suggest a danger of bias.9 

 

                                                 
7
 www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/content/public-bodies-and-appointments 

8
  In general, all financial interests should be declared.  When considering what non-financial 

interests should be declared, you should ask yourself whether a member of the public, acting 

reasonably, would consider that the interest in question might influence your words, actions or 

decisions. 
9
  These are common law provisions. 

Page 35



 

 9 

4.3 It is your responsibility to ensure that you are familiar with the 

rules on handling conflicts of interests, that you comply with these rules 

and that your entry interests is 

accurate and up-to-date. 

 

 

5 RESPONSIBILTIES AS A BOARD MEMBER 

 

5.1 You should play a full and active role in the work of the body.  You 

should fulfil your duties and responsibilities responsibly and, at all 

times, act in good faith and in the best interests of the body. 

 

5.2 You should deal with the public and their affairs fairly, efficiently, 

promptly, effectively and sensitively, to the best of your ability.  You 

must not act in a way that unjustifiably favours or discriminates against 

particular individuals or interests. 

 

5.3 You must comply with any statutory or administrative requirements 

relating to your post10. 

 

5.4 You should respect the principle of collective decision-making and 

corporate responsibility.  This means that, once the board has made a 

decision, you should support that decision. 

 

5.5 You must not use, or attempt to use, the opportunity of public service to 

promote your personal interests or those of any connected person, 

firm, business or other organisation. 

 

 

6. RESPONSIBILITIES TOWARDS EMPLOYEES 

 

6.1 You will treat any staff employed by the body with courtesy and 

respect.  It is expected that employees will show you the same 

consideration in return. 

 

6.2 You will not ask or encourage employees to act in any way which 

would conflict with their own Code of Conduct. 

                                                 
10

 In the case of a body incorporated under the Companies Act or the Companies (Northern 

Ireland) Order, you will also be subject to the duties of directors under company law.  In the 

case of a body that has charitable status, you will also be subject to the duties of trustees 

under charities law. 

Page 36



 

 10 

 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting of the Shadow Panel held on 7 November 2012
	5 Appointment of Independent Co-opted Members
	7 Terms of Reference, Panel Arrangements, Rules of Procedure
	Item 7a ToR_Panel Arr_Rules of Proc FINAL

	8 Code of Conduct for PCP Members
	Item 8 Appendix 1 Board Code of Practice 2011


